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Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Reference and Administrative Details

Members

The trustees, who are also directors for the purposes of company law, present their report and the financial statements of
the company for the period ended 31 August 2021. The Trustees collectively comprise the Governing Body. lt is the
Governing Body which holds responsibility for these accounts.

Page 1

Appointed Resigned

07/0412021
ou04l2o2L

0710912020

0710912020

0u04/2027
0710212027

07lo4l2027
ouo4l2027

3710312027

3t/0312O2t

3L/0312027

07l04l2O2L

otl04l2027

ouosl2o2o

oTlosl2o2o

0t104/2027
0110212027

0110412021

ou04l202L
3r103/2027

37103/2027

371t212020

3710312027

Trustees

Professor Martin Alexand er
Mr William Bancroft
Mr Paul Benson

Dr John Bentham
Mr Roderick Burgess

Mr Michael Burrow
Mr Douglas Cameron
Mr Matthew Dobson

Mr Peter Dyer

Mr Paul Fitton
Mrs Deborah Garritty
Professor David Hutchi nson

Mrs Ena Lund

Mr Andrew Neal

Dr Navita Parekh

Mrs Wendy Preston
Mr Howard Roberts (Chair of Governors)
HHJ Phillip Sycamore

Mr Douglas Walker
Mr Mark Youlton

Professor Martin Alexand er
Mr William Bancroft
Mr Paul Benson

Dr John Bentham
Mrs Alison Bland

Mr Roderick Burgess

Mr Michael Burrow
Mr Douglas Cameron

Mr Hugh Castle (StaffTrustee)

Mr Matthew Dobson

Mr Peter Dyer
Mr Paul Fitton
Mrs Deborah Garritty
Professor David H utchi nson

Mr Nicholas King

Mrs Ena Lund

Mr Richard Mellon (Staff Trustee)
Mr Andrew Neal

Dr Navita Parekh

Mrs Wendy Preston

Dr Christopher Pyle (Accounting Officer)
Mr Kevin Roberts

Mr Howard Roberts (Chair of Governors)
HHJ Phillip Sycamore

Mr Graeme Thompson (Staff Trustee)
Mrs Sarah Troughton
Mr Douglas Walker
Mr Andrew Whipp
Mr Mark Youlton 0tl04l2o2t



Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Reference and Administrative Details (continued)

Company Secretary

Senior Management Team
. Headteacher
. Deputy Headteacher
. Deputy Headteacher
. Assistant Headteacher
. Assistant Headteacher
. Director of Finance and Support Services
. Director of Finance and Support Services

Company Name

Principal and Registered Office

Company Registration Number

lndependent Auditor

Bankers

Solkitors

Mr Richard Gittins

Dr C Pyle

Mr M Chambers
Mr J Hallsworth
Ms S Haigh

Dr D Rowe

Mrs C Lodge (Appointed 18 December 2020)
Mr R Thomas (Retired 18 December 2020)

Lancaster Royal Grammar School

East Road

Lancaster
LA1 3EF

07469330

Saint and Co

The Old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria

t-A22 0BT

Barclays Bank PLC

38 Market Street
Lancaster

LA1 1HR

Veale Wasbrough Vizards LLP

Narrow Quay House

Narrow Quay
Bristol

BS1 4QA

Page 2



Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Trustees'Report

Page 3

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the charitable company
for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purpose of both a trustees report, and a

directors' report under company law.

The Academy Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 18 serving a catchment area in Lancaster and surrounding areas.

It had a roll of 1,223 in the school census on 15 January 2021.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Academy is to carry on a selective state-funded school, principally for boys in years 7 to 11 and

from 1st September 2019 coeducational in the 6th Form, known as Lancaster Royal Grammar School (independent of Local

Authority control). The Academy will provide secondary education predominantly for pupils aged 11-18 years old with a

curriculum that satisfies legal requirements, that is balanced and broad. The pupils will be wholly or mainly drawn from the
area in which the Academy is situated.

ln addition, the Academy provides boarding accommodation to assist in its objective of providing education for its pupils.

The charge for the boarding to parents ofthe pupils concerned will not exceed the full cost ofthe Academy providing the board
and lodgings.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum and

articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The trustees of Lancaster Royal Grammar School are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law. The charitable company operates as Lancaster Royal Grammar School. The Trustees also make up the Governing Body of
the Academy and each Trustee is a Governor ofthe Academy.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' tiability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be

required, not exceeding f 10, for the debts and liabillties contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' lndemnities
The Academy has purchased indemnity insurance to protect Trustees and officers of the Academy Trust from claims arising

from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The company's Articles of Association (Article 46) provide for the Trustees to be constituted as follows:

I Up to 15 Trustees appointed by the Members
2 3 staff Trustees, if appointed by the Members
3 Up to 1 Local Authority (LA) Trustee if appointed by the LA

4 3 Parent Trustees

5 The Headmaster (an ex officio Trustee)
6 Up to 1 Co-opted Trustee appointed by the rest ofthe Trustees
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the lnduction and Training of Trustees
Most of the Trustees appointed would be familiar with the work of the Academy, and would be asked to join the Trustee body
if it was thought they could bring skills that would enhance the Academy's operations. The training and induction provided for
new Trustees would depend on their existing experience. Where necessary, induction will provide training on charity,
educational, legal and financial matters. All new Trustees will be provided with a tour of the Academy and given the
opportunity to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgetl
plans and other documents that they will require to fulfil their role as a Trustee. lnduction is tailored to the specific individual
based on prior experience and interests.

Organisational Structure
The management structure consists of the Trustees, the senior leadership team, a complex array of middle managers and
coordinators. The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage decision making at all levels of
the Academy operations.

The Trustees are responsible for setting the overall strategic policy decisions of the Academy adopting an annual plan and
budget forecastt monitoring the results of the Academy by way of forecasts against the budgets and making the major
decisions about the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The senior leadership team comprising the Headteacher, 2 Deputy Headteachers, 2 Assistant Headteachers, and Director of
Finance & Support Services control the Academy at a day to day level, implementing the policies that have been agreed by the
Trustees and then reporting back to them.

Arrantements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The pay and remuneration of the Headmaster and the Senior Leadership team is set at a meeting of the Governing Body Pay

Committee. The performance of the Headmaster and Senior Leadership team is reviewed with comparison to previously set
objectives when the committee makes its decision. lndividuals may appeal any decision to the Governing Body Pay Appeals

Committee. There were no appeals made in the year to 31st August 2021.

Trade union facility time

y bill spent on foc time
Iotal cost of facilitv time
fotal pay bill f6,405,453
Zo of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.00%

Poid trode union octivities
There was no paid union activity during the period

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
The Academy Members are also the same Members as those of the Lancaster Royal Grammar School Charity, registered

number 526602. The purpose of this charity is to assist the Trustees in the running of the Academy.

Details of transactions between the two entities are included within note 25 in the financial statements.

time on ocility time
Percentage of time Number of employees
0% 2

L% - 50o/o

57% - 99%
700%
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Objectives a nd Activities

Obiects and Aims
The Academy Trust's principal object is specifically restricted to the advance for public benefit of education in the United

Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,

managing and developing a school offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

ln accordance with the funding agreement dated 15 April 2011, made under Section 1 of the Academies Act 2010 between the

Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust, the Academy is governed by a board of Trustees which exercises its
powers and functions with a view to fulfilling a largely strategic role in the running of the school. The funding agreement

specifies the admission arrangements, amongst other items, and that the curriculum, in substance, complies with the statutory
requirements of Section 78 Education Act 2002.

The Academy's main strategy is to raise the standards of achievement through a continued focus on improvement of all aspects

of the Academy. The core purpose of the Academy is the teaching and learning of its pupils. Resources are consistently and

regularly measured by the contribution they make to the overall quality of teaching and learning, and therefore the standards

that the pupils achieve.

ln addition to its educational aims for its pupils, the Academy will also aim:

. to ensure that every pupil enjoys a high standard of extra-curricular opportunity and pastoral care

. to be at the heart of the Lancaster community, promoting community cohesion and sharing facilities with other schools and

the wider community
. to provide for the efficient use of money and funds expended
. to continually improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping key aspects such as the curriculum, pastoral support

and management structure under review
. to conduct the Academy's business in an open, effective manner, with the highest standards of integrity and openness.

ln order to support the Academy in these aims, the Academy will evaluate, manage and maintain:

. a clear organisational structure of governance which allows staff and pupils to understand their roles in the Academy

. a review of staff performance and provision of necessary professional development

. robust quality assurance processes which are transparent and provide a basis for action plans

. appropriate structures to provide resources to support both staff and pupils in achieving their goals.



Lancaster Roya! Grammar School Page 6

Trustees' Report (continued)

Obiectives, Strategies and Activities
The main priorities of the Academy during the year ended 31st August 2027 are summarized below:

. Pupil progress achieved by promoting the highest standards of academic achievement at GCSE and A Level and through the
use of data and assessment to identifo and support all pupils.

. Pandemic response achieved by ensuring a covid-19 secure environment for pupils and staff, identifying pupils requiring
pastoral support following school closures, the establishment of remote teaching and agreeing departmental priorities to
address lost learning.

. Challenging prejudice by establishing diversity and equality groups in the school and reviewing and changing the school

curriculum

. Promoting a love of reading and improving writing.

Equal opportunity policy
The Trustees understand that it is important for good practice within the workplace, that equal opportunities should exist. The

Academy aims to establish equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating a working environment in which the
contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.

Public Benefit
The Trustees have given consideration to the charity commission's general guidance on public benefit and in particular to its
supplementary guidance on education. The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the
Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers

or duties. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future
activities.
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Achievements and Performance
The academy educates approximately 1,267 pupils aged from 11 to 18, including 170 boarders and a Sixth Form of around 395

pupils. ln September 2017 the academy trust increased its admission number to recruit 150 day pupils and 24 boarders into
Year 7 each year. ln September 2020 we reduced the 11+ pass mark for pupils eligible for the Pupil Premium in line with our
historic grammar school mission of outreach and access. Our Sixth Form became coeducational for day students in 2019, and

from lst September 2020 we also our welcomed our first cohort of eleven girls as Sixth Form boarders.

The school was separated into zones or bubbles for much of the year, meaning that lesson time in specialist areas such as music

rooms and science laboratories was limited. Teachers provided continuous high-quality lessons to all year groups via Microsoft
Teams during the period of school closure. Key workers'children and vulnerable pupils attended lessons in school throughout
the closure, and one boarding house remained open.

Examinations were cancelled for the second successive year for GCSE and A-level students, and students were awarded Teacher
Assessed Grades on the basis oftheir performance during the courses. Students received deservedly excellent results.

At A-level, students were awarded A*, A or B grades in 83.3% of all subjects.62.3% of these were awarded A* or A grades, and

24.9% received A* grades or the Pre-U equivalent.

Those excellent results were mirrored by progression to a wide range of high-quality post-18 opportunities. lt was very pleasing

to support applications across the full range of Arts, Humanities and Science subjects, and to high-quality apprenticeships and

degree apprenticeships. A large majority of students progressed to competitive university courses. Ten students gained places

at Oxford and Cambridge, including one of our first cohort of Sixth Form girls. 72% of university acceptances were for higher
tariff UCAS courses.

The most popular university destinations were Lancaster University, Newcastle University and University College London. Most
popular subjects included Medicine, Economics, Engineering and Geography.

GCSE results were also very strong, and well-deserved by this cohort who experienced such disruption to both years of their
studies. 70.7% of all GCSEs were graded 9 to 7.47.5% of resuhs were awarded grades 9 and 8, and99.7% of all results were at
grades 9 to 4. We provided remote teaching and summer work for GCSE students and external Sixth Form applicants in order to
help their smooth progression to A-level courses.

The school's successes in extracurricular activities are well documented on the website www.lrgs.org.uk. Despite the national

lockdown that closed the school for several months the following were particulady noteworthy:

a

a

Business and Enterprise: Lancashire Company of the Year in the Young Enterprise showcase.

Charities: Pupils raised f8729.86for the following Lenten charities despite school closure in the Lent term: Team Reece, St.

John's Hospice, Nishkam SWAT, Cancer Research UK, Money for Madagascar and Movember. One student raised f1230 for
NHS Charities Together running challenge, and Christmas Jumper Day raised f 913.30 for Save the Children. Year 7 and 8

raised around f 12fi) for St John's Hospice in the Reindeer Run. Pupils raised f400 following a tragic explosion in Heysham.

Cricket: U13s Lancashire Cup winners, and U14 and U15 finalists. Several pupils gained county recognition including

Lancashire U14 and U15 captains. One pupil represented Durham County U14s, and scored a century in the Lancashire Cup

final versus Manchester Grammar School. First Xl fixtures in an interrupted season included the Royal Grammar Schools'

Festival, the MCC, and a Douglas Cameron memorial fixture. LRGS was named as one of the Cricket Magazine's top 100

cricketing schools.
Computing: 458 Students took part in the BEBRAS Computational Thinking Challenge and 128 achieved a Distinction
Cycling: Pupil placed 15th in the National Road Youth series.
Drama: Four students achieved LAMDA Acting Grade 8 Gold medals with Distinction.
Engineering: Two students gained prestigious Arkwright Scholarships.

Essay competitions: Student won the Lancaster University Sport and Exercise lnspiring Minds essay competition. Another
student was highly commended in the Cambridge University Caius Explore Essay Competition for Theology, Religion and

Philosophy.

a

a

o

a

a
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. Football: Student awarded North Lancashire Young Referee of the Year trophy.

. Golt Youngest qualifier for the Open Regional Final at St Annes Old Links and Winner of NW Junior Open.

. Hockey: Student selected for the northwest team in the England Hockey Futures tournament.
o lnternational lntermediate Biology Olympiad: 3 Gold, 7 Silver and 13 Bronze Awards
. lnternational Physics Olympiad: 7 Gold and 4 Silver Awards. One placed in the top 15 nationally and was chosen to

represent GB in Olympiad competition against other European countries where he placed 23rd overall.
. Maths Olympiad: Distinction and Merit.
. Netball: Despite the limited opportunities, netball teams competed successfully in their first competitive inter-school

fixtures.
. Parallel Histories: Students debated with schools from the UK, Europe and North America. Sixth Form girls were involved

as mentors with the Forward Assist debating programme with former service women.
. Photography: Student won the National Geographic photography competition focused on teenagers' wellbeing.
. Publications: SixthFormstudentpublishedhisfirstbook: "Britainindepression?Ateenager'sperspectiveofCOV|D-19's

impact on the UK economy." Two students had articles published in the Geography journal Routes. A-level historians
published original research on Lancaster's slave trade history, working alongside academics and Lancaster Black History
Group.

. Rugby: Several students progressed to performance pathways and County squads despite this season's loss of normal
competitions. LRGS was featured in the Rugby Paper as part of their series on "Rugby's Great Schools."

o Running and Orienteering: Two students were selected for the Lancashire fell running team. A former pupil was selected
for to represent GB in the World Orienteering Championships.

. Stamp Competitions: Stamp club was a popular new addition to the school. Two Year 7 pupils won prizes in national
stamp competitions.

. Swimming: Pupil selected for Swim England National Development Programme.

. Table Tennis: Pupilwon Silver medal in the U19 nationals and represented England in the European Youth Championships.

. Television: An Old Lancastrian was part of the Wanarick University team who were overall champions of University
Challenge. Pupil was semi-finalist in W cookery competition Step up to the Plate.

. Tennb: Cumbria U11 and U12 champion, Lancashire U14 County winner, U16 Boys Regional Semi-finalist, U18 Boys

Regional finalist, national top 30 ranked player.
o Volunteering: Students volunteered in a wide range of settings including food banks, NHS centres and vaccination centres.

Year 9 pupil was highly commended for his volunteering during lockdown in the High Sheriff s Young Citizen of the year

awards.
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covtD - 19
At the start of the year pupils and teachers returned to school after the end of the first lockdown. The school operated in year

group or class "bubbles" throughout the year which impacted on students' ability to access practical elements of the
curriculum such as practical science lessons. lt also limited the opportunities for extra-curricular activities such as clubs, trips
and sports fixtures.

Additional costs of approximately f 29,000 were incurred during the year on enhanced cleaning regimes and other items to
maintain a COVID secure environment.

The second closure of schools, imposed by the Government in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, from 5th January 2027had
a significant impact on the provision of lessons to our pupils and led to a loss of boarding income of f425,000.

The education of the pupils continued throughout the second lockdown period with online lessons being delivered by Teachers

through Microsoft Teams. Our disadvantaged students were provided with laptops to ensure that they were able to continue
their education along with their peers. Pupils whose parents were classified as key workers, pupils classified as vulnerable and

some boarders who were unable to return home overseas due to the closure of international borders continued to attend
school throughout the lockdown.

The school was unable to generate any income from letting of the school facilities during the year due to COVID restrictions.

The school received grant funding of f67,000 from the COVID catch up fund, which has been used to pay for additional
hardware to support remote learning, online revision resources and cover for teachers to allow for additional face to face time
with students in break and lunchtimes.

The school also received funds for mass testing of students on the return to school in March 2021 which was used to fund a

team to perform the mass testing.

The school has started the new year operating almost back to normal, however ongoing levels of infection in the population

have meant that the school continues to offer hybrid remote learning to support students who are self-isolating due to testing
positive for COVID.

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the board ofTrustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the board ofTrustees continues to

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going

concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.
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FinancialReview

Financial Review
The Academy Trust's accounting period is 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2021.

The majority of the Academy's income is derived from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of annual
grants and from income in respect of boarding fees from parents of the boarders to fund the costs of running the boarding
houses. These sources of income are all shown within restricted general funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

General Annual Grant funding increased in the year by f734,779 due primarily to the increase in pupil numbers across the
school. Boarding income was increased by f 591,231 due to a combination of an increased number of boarders and less

income lost in the second lockdown which was shorter that the first lockdown.

Teaching and educational support staff costs have increased due to the school's continued expansion.

The Lancaster Royal Grammar School Charity (Charity number 525502) gave donations totalling f770,757 (2020:
f85,102). The donations were to support the schools outreach programme to local primary school, the extra- curricular
programme that is run for all pupils at the school, to support the general running costs of the school and for capital projects.
Friends of LRGS made donations of f4,815 (2020: f74,992) for the purchase of equipment for a number of small projects.

At 31st August 2027 the net book value of fixed assets was f33,611,4O2 (2020: f 34,002,348) and movements in tangible fixed
assets are shown in note 14 to the financial statements. The assets were used for providing education and the associated
support services to the students of the Academy.

The decrease in debtors is primarily due to a decrease in accrued income as there was CIF funding due at the end of August
2020 which has been received during the year.

Creditors due in less than one year has increased as part of the ESFA loan (f 120,000) is due within one year and there is an
increase in accruals due to invoices in respect of the CIF project and other capital works that were not received by the year end
in respect of work done in Summer 2021.

Key Financial Performance lndicators

Stolling costs qs q % of totol income (excluding copitol income)
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Reserves Policy
The Trustees review the level of reserves in the Academy annually. This includes a review of all the expected income and

expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of the reserves. The reserves on the

General Annual Grant (GAG) fund are dictated by the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) rules on carry forward, and it is

the Academy's aim to stay within lhe 2% unrestricted carry forward.

The level of reserves remains significantly below the level the trustees would like to operate with. lt is the intention to increase

the amount held in reserves over the coming years but given significant cost pressures and further reductions in funding this

remains a long term ambition.

Funds in Deficit
The General Annual Grant fund is in deficit at the year end totalling f2,027,5O8. Over the course of the year this has reduced by

f59,446. The academy trust has agreed a 5 year plan to return the position to surplus with the ESFA as part of the repayment

of the loan of f599,000 with ESFA.

The Trust holds a deficit on the local government pension scheme of f3,595,000. ln the event of the closure of Lancaster Royal

Grammar School, this deficit would be met by the DfE.

The deficit position of the pension scheme will result in a cash flow effect for the academy trust in the form of an increase in

employers' pension contributions over a period of years

lnvestment Policy
Apart from the cash held for the operation of the Academy, Lancaster Royal Grammar School has no material investments.

With respect to its cash holdings the Trustees have adopted a low risk strategy.

Principal Risks and Uncertaanties

Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system and are reviewed at all Governors' meetings. Plans to mitigate against

these risks is then managed by the Academy. The material risks that have been identified are shown in the section below.

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Academy are:

. the uncertainty of boarding revenues from year to year

. the non-payment of boarding fees by parents

. the availability of sufficient educational funding when reserves have been exhausted

. reductions in 6th Form and other ESFA funding

. financial impact of expanding when funding is based on the previous year's census of pupil numbers.
o unexpected expenditure leading to a significant year end deficit
. the ability to meet the repayment schedule imposed by ESFA for the emergency loan given to cover lost boarding revenue

in an environment when future ESFA funding and salary costs are far from certain

. significant increases in the cost of utilities

. unfunded pay increases for teachers and support staff

. the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme

. the increasing maintenance requirements of the property estate some of which is in a very poor state of repair

. the uncertainty of how to fund improvements in the academy's boarding provision

The risks resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic include:

. Potential impact of any further lockdowns on boarding income

. potential impact on pupils taking GCSE and A-Level exams in 2022 due to lost learning during the national lockdowns

. Disruption to pupils and staff who need to self-isolate following positive tests for COVID

o Uncertainty about the form that GCSE and A-Level examinations will take in 2022 and the impact

. lncreased pastoral support for students and staff as a result of the impact of COVID on mental health

. lncreased costs associated with continuing to maintain a COVID secure environment

. Loss of income from the letting of school facilities to local community Broups and clubs if there are further lockdowns
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Financial and Risk Management Obiectives and Policies
The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to the curriculum,
political, operational, financial, personnel, governance, technological and school expansion risk. The Trustees are satisfied that
systems and procedures are in place to mitigate exposure to major risks.

Principal Funding Sources
The majority of the Trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Local Authority in
the form of grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. ln addition the Trust receives income in the form of
boarding fees from parents, which cover the costs of pupils boarding at the Academy.

Fundraising

Fundraising for the school is managed through the Lancaster Royal Grammar School Charity. We seek voluntary donations from
Parents of our pupils and from our alumni known as Old Lancastrians. The management of fundraising is performed by
employees of the school and overseen by the Headmaster and the Director of Finance & Support Services. The fundraising is

monitored by the Trustees of the Charity and any complaints should be directed to the Chair of the Charity Trustees. We are

also supported by The Friends of LRGS which is principally a parents' organisation which supports the school through various
social and fundraising activities.

Plans for Future Periods

Since September 2077 the school has started an expansion programme with the addition of a new form in Year 7. The
additional forms have now reached year 11 and the school will reach full capacity in the year 202312024. The funding for the
expanded number of pupils on the roll is lagged by one year. The school has changed its admissions policy to admit girls to the
sixth form with effect from September 2019 and into boarding in September 2020. As at September 2021, the school had 65
girls in the sixth form, 15 of whom were boarders.

The Academy as part of its agreement with the ESFA to repay the loan of f599,000 over a period of 5 years, has reforecast its
income and expenditure over the next 5 years taking into account the expansion programme and a review of the trusts cost
base. The purpose of the plan is to repay the loan but also to return the school's reseryes to a cumulative surplus. Repayment
of the loan and the school's performance against the plan will be monitored by ESFA over the period.

There is an urgent need to upgrade the fabric of some of our school and boarding facilities. This is dependent on successful bids
for an allocation from the ESFA Condition lmprovement Fund. However, success in winning these bids is becoming more
difficult, rendering some of the sports facilities unusable. This has an adverse effect on the delivery of physical education to our
pupils and reduces our ability to hire facilities to external community groups. There is now an expectation that the academy
will provide an injection of funds from its own resources or for it to use Salix loans for energy projects. The academy will
however continue to submit bids for funding from the Condition lmprovement Fund for projects that will ensure that the
school's estate is fit for purpose.
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Funds Held on Behalf of Others

The academy trust acts as a intermediary for the 16-19 Bursary fund, but has no responsibility, the trust distributes the funds to
students as an agent for the ESFA.

The academy trust acts as a intermediary for two projects under the Erasmus programme. Funds are received from the British

Council and the academy trust does not have control over the distribution of the grant in its role as coordinator.

Auditor

Saint & Co have indicated its willingness to continue in office, and a resolution to appoint them will be proposed at the annual

general meeting.

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditor
lnsofar as the trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware: and
o the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information

and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the board of trustees and

signed on its behalf by:

Mr Howard Roberts
Chair of Trustees

telt?j'z-2, Date

SJJ.
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Scope of Responsibility
As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Lancaster Royal Grammar School has an effective
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against

material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework
for governance.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, who is the Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the Funding Agreement between Lancaster Royal

Grammar School and the Secretary of State for Education.

They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement of
Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met four times during the year. Meetings were attendedbV 86%
of eligible Trustees.

The finance committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees and is chaired by a qualified and experienced
accountant. lts purpose is to assist the decision making process of the Academy's governing body, by enabling more detailed
consideration to be given to the best means of fulfilling the governing body's responsibility to ensure sound management of
the Academy's finances and resources. Five meetings were held during the year. These were attended by 85% of eligible
committee members.

The audit and risk committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. lts purpose is to review the effectiveness of
the Academy's corporate governance arrangements, risk management and systems for internal control. lts remit covers all
significant risks to the Academy, both financial and reputational. The committee receives reports directly from the external
auditors and Responsible Officer. Five meetings were held during the year. These were attended by 92% of eligible committee
members.

The properties committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. lts purpose is to review the management, upkeep
and development of the estate and to review health and safety policies and practice throughout the school for the benefit of
all students, staff and visitors. Two meetings were held during the year. These were attended bV 86% of eligible committee
members.

The HR and Welfare committee is a sub-committee of the main body of Trustees. lts purpose is to review issues concerning the
development, well-being and compliance with the human resource policies as they affect all employees at the Academy. lt also
has responsibility for the monitoring of child protection and safeguarding. Two meetings were held during the year. These
were attended bV 75% of eligible committee members.

The pay committee is a sub-committee of the main body of Trustees. lt is responsible for approving variations in the
remuneration of all employees of the Academy. One meeting was held during the year. This was attended by lO}o/o of eligible
committee members.

The curriculum committee is a sub-committee of the main body of Trustees. lt is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness
of the delivery of the education to the students in the Academy and of the provision of services to boarders. Three meetings
were held during the year. These were attendedby 89% of eligible committee members.

ln addition to the meetings of the Board and sub-committees, the trustees maintain effective oversight of funds through
receipt of monthly management information and regular meetings between the Chairman and the headmaster.
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Governance Review
. No self-evaluation review has been performed in the year. A full review of the Governance structure is on-going as part of

a review of the Articles of Association of the academy trust.

Board of Trustees work, performance and changes in composition
Six long standing members of the Trustees retired during the year. Six new members were appointed during the year. The

Audit and Risk committee and the Boarding committee both appointed new Chairs in the year, following the retirement of the

old Chair. A new sub-committee for Safeguarding was formed during the year with the responsibility for oversight of

safeguarding moving from the HR and Welfare committee. The first meeting of this committee was in October 2021.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board and all the committees is summarized below:

Governor

Prof M Alexander
Mr W Bancroft
Mr P Benson

Dr J Bentham
Mr M Burrow
Mrs A Bland
Mr H Castle
Mr M Dobson

Mr P Dyer

Mr P Fitton
Mrs D Garritty
Prof D Hutchison
Mr N King

Mrs E Lund

Mr R Mellon
Mr A Neal

Dr N Parekh

Mrs W Preston

Dr C Pyle

Mr H Roberts

HHJ P Sycamore
Mr G Thompson
Mrs S Troughton

Mr D Walker
Mr A Whipp
Mr M Youlton

Percentage attendance 86%
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Governor

Prof M Alexander
Mr W Bancroft
Mr P Benson
DrJ Bentham
Mr M Burrow
Mrs A Bland

Mr H Castle

Mr M Dobson

Mr P Dyer

Mr P Fitton
Mrs D Garritty
Prof D Hutchison

Mr N King

Mrs E Lund

Mr R Mellon

MrA Neal

Dr N Parekh

Mrs W Preston

Dr C Pyle

Mr H Roberts

HHJ P Sycamore

Mr G Thompson
Mrs S Troughton

Mr D Walker
MrA Whipp
Mr M Youlton

Percentage attendance 75% t00% 89% 85%

Page 16

HR & Welfare Pay Committee Curriculum Committee Boarding Committee
Meetings
attended

Out of a
oossible

Meetings
attended

Out of a
oossihle

Meetings
attFndc.l

Out of a
naceihle

Meetings
:ttanr{cr{

Out of a
oossible

2

L

2

2

L

0

2

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

7

7

t

1

1

7

3

3

2

3

3

1

3

2

3

3

2

3

3

3

3

3

3

2

3

3

3

3

3

3

7

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

0
2

2

2

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

7

2

2

15 20 3 3 31 35 77 20



Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Governa nce Statement (continued)

Page L7

Review of Value for Money
As accounting officer the headmaster has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use of

public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal

outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic

year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data

where available.

The accounting officer sets out below how he has ensured that the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good

value for money during the academic year.

I mproving educqtionol stondords
We continue to scrutinize our curriculum spending to ensure that expenditure matches the school priorities agreed by the

Headmaster and the Governing Body. Budgets for each subject area and for all areas of learning support are reviewed regularly

to ensure that our spending will have the maximum impact on educational outcomes and pupil achievements.

Stoff numbers
Teaching staff numbers have increased by 2 in line with the school expansion plan. Administration and support staff have

decreased by 4. Whenever a member of staff leaves, careful consideration is taken on whether they need to be replaced on a

like for like basis and we take the opportunity to review working practices to improve efficiency.

F i no ncial governo nce o nd ove rsig ht
The Governing Body is provided with regular financial information on expenditure to date and the forecast outturn for the
year. Meetings are timed so that reports are current and represent the latest available information upon which to make

decisions.

The audit and risk committee members take an active interest in ensuring that financial and non-financial risks are identified

and prioritized with appropriate action plans produced to mitigate them. Regular meetings are held with the external auditors

and the responsible officer to ensure that appropriate financial controls are used within the Academy.

The finance committee are responsible for monitoring and reviewing expenditure and ensuring compliance with the overall

financial plan for the Academy, drawing any matters of concern to the attention ofthe Governing Body. Budgetary control

reports on the Academy's financial position are considered at every meeting, including actions planned to contain expenditure

within the budget and to deliver value for money.

The Senior Leadership Team meets every week with finance as a standing agenda item for each meeting. The SLT also hold

focus meetings twice a term for an in depth look at the financial position and challenges faced by the school.

P u rch a si ng e ff ic ie nc ie s

We have tight controls on the purchase of goods and services and regularly review whether we are obtaining value for money

with suppliers. This ensures that the goods and services are fit for purpose and that suppliers have the right degree of

flexibility to meet the academy's needs.

lncome generotion
The Academy receives income from the provision of boarding facilities. We continue to closely monitor the accounts to ensure

that boarding fees are paid in a timely manner and that appropriate action is taken to collect any outstanding debts.

The school normally generates income through the letting of its facilities to local community groups and sports clubs. During

the year no income was generated due to COVID-19 restrictions limiting the opportunity to let out the facilities. The school

has entered into a contract with a third party letting company, Vivify Limited to manage the letting if its facilities going

forward.
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Reviewing controls ond managing risks
The risk register is reviewed regularly and delegated to appropriate Governors' committees for oversight and to members of
staff for action to ensure that the highest risks that are identified can be mitigated and managed. The audit and risk committee
reviews the gifts and hospitality register to ensure that the small number of gifts received comply with the policy and to ensure
that probity is maintained. All staff receive reminders of their responsibilities to prevent fraud and the need for probity when
offered gifu or hospitality from parents or suppliers.

COVID - 19 ampact
All meetings of the Board of Trustees and the sub-committees took place virtually during the year using Microsoft Teams. No

other changes to the systems of governance were required.

The Purpose of the System of lnternal Contro!
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement
of Academy's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in
the Academy for the period 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2O2t and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of the view that there is

a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place

for the year ended 31 August 2021 and upto the date ofthe approval ofthe annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework
The Academy Trust's system of lnternal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. ln particular, it
includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly financial reports which are
reviewed and agreed by the board ofTrustees;

' regular reviews by the finance committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of
major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

o regular reviews by the audit committee of reports from management, the auditor and responsible officer on risks, systems
and processes and financial controls in the school. An annual report from the audit and risk committee is made to the
Governing Body

. settin8 targets to measure financial and other performance;

. clearly defined purchasing guidelines;

. delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
o identification and management of risks.
. completion of a governance self evaluation exercise
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lnternal Scrutiny
The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to buy-in an internal audit

service from Hallidays Group Ltd.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on the

academy trust's financial and other systems. ln particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

. Review of the Financial Procedures Manual

. Review of the Scheme of Delegation

. Review of the monthly Management Accounts

On a termly basis, the auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the audit and risk committee on the operation of the

systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual

summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the

committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

Review of Effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Headmaster has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal auditor;

. the work ofthe external auditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the

audit and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Ntr-t
Mr Howard Roberts
Chair of Governors

,,tl.r( rs'r\ D,t"
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Lancaster Royal Grammar School I have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust board of
trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
terms and conditions of funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that I and the Trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the
Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding agreement and the
Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered to date have

been notified to the board of trustees and ESFA. lf any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be

notified to the board of trustees and ESFA:

. Financial lssues
During the year the academy encountered fraudulent activity. There was a loss incurred due to a Maths Hub invoices
having bank details altered and this was paid across to a fraudulent account. The insurance company made a part payment

to the Academy to cover this fraudulent payment. The financial loss was f4,025 covered by f3,087 from the RPA insurance.

Subsequently processes and procedures have been amended to preventthis from happening again.

L<(. o .1a 
Date
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by

the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the Trustees

must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for

that period. ln preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 20201o202I

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and

explained in the financial statements
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable

company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets ofthe charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its cond uct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other
controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible

for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial

statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

(mJ,
Mr Howard Roberts

Chair of Governors

t.{ \ Q\ ')8?r 
Date
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a

o

o

We have audited the financial statements of the Lancaster Royal Grammar School for the year ended 31 August 2021 which
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

ln our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2O2! and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2O2Oto2027.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relatang to toing concern
ln auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use ofthe going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Lancaster Royal Grammar School's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least 12 months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. lt includes the Reference and
Administrative Details, the Report of the Directors and Strategic Report and the Governance Statement. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otheruise appears to be materially misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of the Lancaster Royal

Grammar School (continued )

Opinion on other mattels prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is

consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ln the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of the

audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches

not visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable

company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being

satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable to
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of the Lancaster Royal
Grammar School (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the lndependent Auditors that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordancewith lSAs (UK)

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non<ompliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, is

detailed below:

o the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities and
skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other
managemenU

. we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial
statements or the operations of the company;

o we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to
instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an

understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual,
suspected and alleged fraud;

. To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
. performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
. tested journal entries to identiry unusual transactions;
. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the accounting

policies were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

ln response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which included,
but were not limited to:

. agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

. reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

. enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations are from

financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards also limit the
audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other
management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve

deliberate concealment or collusion.
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tndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of the Lancaster Roya!

Grammar School (continued )

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting

Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of lndependent

Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those

matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's

members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

For and on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria
LA22 OBT

Date

-<
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
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lndependent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to the Lancaster Royal Grammar
School and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

ln accordance with the terms of our engagement letter d ated 22/0712021a nd further to the requirements of the Education
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by the Lancaster Royal

Grammar School during the period 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Respective Responsibilities of the Lancaster Royal Grammar School's Accounting Officer and the Reporting Accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirement of the Lancaster Royal Grammar School's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 01 September 2014 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1

September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies

Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 01 September 2020 to 31

August 2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant
of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in

order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy
trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

o the school resource management self-assessment checklist (SRMSAT) was obtained and considered;
. having a general awareness of regularity and propriety whilst conducting the statutory audit function;
. reviewing if extra-contractual severance payments have been made in accordance with the Handbook;
. reviewing if borrowing agreements, including leases to ensure they have been made in accordance with the Handbook;
. reviewing the minutes of the meeting of the main committees du ring the year;
. reviewing expenditure to check that it was not ultra vires to the charitable objectives;
. obtaining trustee / governors declaration of interests;
. where present obtaining the accounting officer's file.
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lndependent Reportang Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to the Lancaster Royal Grammar

School and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, except for the matter listed below nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all

material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 01 September 2O2Oto 31 August 2021 has

not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to Lancaster Royal Grammar School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.

Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Lancaster Royal Grammar School and ESFA those matters we are

required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume

responsibility to anyone other than Lancaster Royal Grammar School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

Matter 1:

As highlighted in the Accounting Officer's Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance during the year the academy

encountered fraudulent activity. lt related to purchase invoices were the bank details were altered and this was paid across to
a fraudulent account. We can confirm this was reported Action Fraud at the time and subsequently to the ESFA.

For and on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria

LA22 OBT

t* 0+runoer 1rzt on"

Little (Reporti ng Accounta nt)



Lancaster Roya! Grammar School

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

(lncluding lncome and Expenditure Account)

Unrestricted
Funds

Note E

3-

4 240,540

27

5 3,384

6-

Restricted
General

Funds

f

67,832

6,961,509

1,806,559

49,026

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

f

722,947

Total
202L

€

190,773

7,202,049

1,806,559

51,410
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Total
2020

Restoted
f

338,910

6,552,844

1,79L,177
98,478

lncome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants

Charitable activities
Funding for the academy trust's
educationa I operations
Funding for boarding activities

Other tradi ng activities
lnvestments

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities
Academy trust educational operations

Boarding activities
Other trading activities

Tota!

Net income / (expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains and (losses)

Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes
Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds canied forward

_z!3&t_ _g,gg3pzg_ _!22,e41 j,2!9Jet _&19!!99_

8

27

7

6

236,807

2,552

7,735,L37

1,753,313

517,083

230,489

7,889,027

1,993,902

2,552

7,798,077

7,470,607

5,156

11

_23989_

4,565

37,461

_9L83,444

(4,s18)

(121,836)

_L!1,s72 jg537s_ j,213N_

(624,637) (624,5841 .1,092,43]-],

90,37s

(6s,3s4) (s34,2s6)
61,000 (77,000)

(s63,s84) (1,169,431)36,026

(35,194) (4,310,330) 34,163,038 29,8!7,5L4 30,996,945

J!,31j@L _33,&Lg;782 J9.253@_ _4,311 514

All of the academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.

19

19
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Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2021

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

lnvestments

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Debtors due after one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: Amount falling due within one year

Net current assets

Tota! assets hss current liabilities

Creditors: Amount falling due greater than one year

Provision for Iiabilities
Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds
Pension reserve

Tota! restricted funds

Unrestricted income fu nds

General fund
Tota! unrestricted funds

Total funds

Note

74

2021
f

t0,847
334,646
266,143
985,220

1,596,856

(7,767,443)

19 33,628,782
19 (780,584)

19,24 (3,595,000)

19
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Company Nu mber: 07 46E330

2020 2020
f Restoted C

34,0O2,348

34,002,348

8,2L9
725,L25

644,546
1,377,890

(1,458,349)
(80,459)

33,921,889

(683,375)

(3,421,000)

_29,817 5L4

15

16

16

202L
E

33,6L1,402

33,6LL,402

(170,587)

33,440,815

(591,885)

(3,s9s,000)

29,253,93O

t7

34,153,039
(889,330)

(3,421,000)

29,253,098

832 (35,194)

29,852,708

(3s,194)832

29,253,930 29,817,514

Rtu-U
Mr Howard Roberts
Chair of Governors

The financial statements were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue o^ .l.lt..il*t-pL(lb%{./.il.hna rign"a

on their behalf by: U

c?tG
Dr Christopher Pyle
Headteacher & Accounting Officer

19



Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Reconciliation of net income / (expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial
activities)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income
Capital donations
lnterest payable

lnterest receivable
Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme net pension finance costs
Decrease/( I ncrease)lncrease in stocks
Decrease/(l ncrease) i n debtors
lncrease/(Decrease) in creditors
lncrease/(Decrease) in creditors over one year
Decrease/(lncrease) in ESFA/CIFlSalix loans included above

Net cash provided by / (used in) Operating Activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowing
Cash inflows from new borrowing
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
lnterest receivable
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income
Capital donations
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2020

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

202L
f

(624,s84)

364,763
49,200

(30,201)
(92,740)

171,000

64,000
(2,6281

L24,336
309,094
(91,490)
(28,510)
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2020
Restoted f
(1,0s2,437)

388,564

(227,996)
(s,78s)

t72,OOO

54,000
73,674

(203,12s)
409,479
647,680

(647,680],

(6,490)

35,000

122,4-77)

30,201

92,740

1 Sep 20
f

644,546
644,546

New
agreements

f

tgs,ooot

277,640 (48s,680)

(6,490)

654,770
28,51O 647,680

(61,23s)
22L,996

5,785
700,524 765,546

340,674 328,545

u4,546

340,674

316,000

328,546

985,220

Cash flows
f

340,674
340,674

644,546

31 Aug 21
f

985,220
985,220

Analysis ofchanges in netdebt

Cash

Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than a year
Total

1Sep 20 Cash flows

ff
644,546 340,674
(6,490) 6,490

(683,37s)

Other non- 31 Aug 21

cash changes
ff

- 985,220
(726,4901 (126,490)
726,490 (591,885)

(45,319) U7,1il (35,000) - 266,845
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

General Information
The academy trust is a public benefit entity and a private company limited by guarantee, registered in England and Wales

and is an exempt charity. The address of the registered office is Lancaster Royal Grammar School, East Road, Lancaster, LA1

3EF, United Kingdom.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under

the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities

preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland
(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011

and the Companies Act 2006.

The trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going Concern
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going

concern. Thetrusteesmakethisassessmentinrespectofaperiodofatleastoneyearfromthedateofauthorisationfor
the issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial

statements.

The Trust accessed additional funding in the form of a loan from the ESFA of f599,000 to offset the effect of lost boarding

fees during the first lockdown in 2020. The Trust has agreed a five year plan for repayment of the loan starting in the year

ending 31 August 2022 which should also return the Trust to operational surplus over the same time period. ln order to
reach the agreement with the ESFA the Trust reforecast its income and expenditure based on its existing expansion plan for
student numbers and a review of the Trust's cost base to identify additional savings.

The Trust suffered an additional loss of boarding fees during the lockdown at the start of 2O21. The Trust worked closely

with the ESFA to agree additional borrowing, however due to tight budgetary control and some additional in year GAG

money, the Trust did not have to drawdown on any additional loan funds from the ESFA.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)
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lncoming Resources
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is

received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income
and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

. General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable
and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

. Other government grants are also recognised on a receivable basis. For all grants the balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.

. Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when
there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

o Donations, legacies and other forms of voluntary income are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no
performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

. Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy
trust has provided the goods or services.

. Donated goods, facilities and services. Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected
proceeds from sale less the expected costs ofsale. lf it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in
stock and 'lncome from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'lncome from
other trading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as 'lncome from other trading activities'. Where it is

impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial
statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'lncome from other trading activities'.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in
which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a

corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic
life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Deferred lncome
Grants and other funding received for the academy's educational activities for a period spanning the year end are deferred
pro-rata to the relevant periods in order to match the funding to the period in which the costs of charitable activities are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)
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Atency Arrangements - Bursary

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments received from the ESFA

and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the trust does not

have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust uses up to 5% of the allocation towards its own

administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities.

The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in the agency arrangements note. The unused funds at the

period end are included as a liability in the balance sheet in other creditors.

Agency Arrangements - British Council

The academy trust acts as the coordinator for two projects under the Erasmus programme. Funds are received from the

British Council under the terms of the grant for each project and distributed to the Partner Organisations in accordance to
the terms of the grant. The academy trust is also a Partner Organisation on the projects so some funding is distributed

back to the Academy Trust.

As the academy trust does not have control over the distribution of the grant in its role as coordinator, the funds received

and the subsequent disbursement to the Partner Organisations are excluded from the statement of financial activities.

The activities of the academy trust as a Partner Organisation have been included in the statement of financial activities.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be

measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs

and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity

are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are

not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources.

. Charitable Activities - These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs

and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

. Expenditure on Raising Funds - This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its

charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets are carried at valuation/cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

The capitalisation policy of items as tangible fixed assets is as follows:

Page 34

. Single assets costing less than f 1,000 or similar groups of assets purchased or ordered together of less than f 1,000 are
written off in the year of purchase.

Land and buildings are classed as long leasehold if the lease term is over 50 years.

Tangible fixed assets transferred on conversion to Academy status have been included in the accounts at valuation.

Tangible fixed assets since the Academy was established are included in the accounts at cost.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the
private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset on a straight-line/reducing balance basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

o Historic buildings are not depreciated as they have an indefinite useful life.
. Long leasehold property - straight line over the estimated economic life (50 years)
. Plant and machinery - straight line over 3 years
. ICT equipment - straight line over 3 years
o Fixtures, fittings and equipment - straight line over 3 years
. Motor vehicles - straight line over 3 years

Assets are depreciated in full in the year of purchase.

The total depreciation charge is allocated to teaching costs and administration and support costs pro-rata to the number of
employees.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought
into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable
amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Iiabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that
a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably.
Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has

received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)
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Public Benefit Entity Concessionary Loans

Public benefit entity concessionary loans shall initially be measured at the amount received and recognised in the

statement of financial position. ln subsequent years, the carrying amount of concessionary loans in the financial statements

shall be adjusted to reflect any accrued interest payable.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which

it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest
payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership remain with the lessor

are charged against profits on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Financial lnstruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities

of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finonciolossets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised

cost as detailed in the notes. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Finonciol liobilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised

cost as detailed in the notes. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an

obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity's wholly owned

subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within

categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 ofthe Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable

Gains Act L992,to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.



Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 {continued}

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)

Page 35

Pension Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and the Local

Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of
the academy trust.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working
lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a

prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multiemployer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between
employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in

separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an

actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a
high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least

triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as

part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme

assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Notes to the Financia! Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of
the academy trust at the discretion ofthe governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where

the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise grants, including the General Annual Grant (GAG), and other funding for educational
purposes and anyvoluntary income to be used for specific purposes.

The Local Government Pension Scheme deficit is recognised against restricted general funds in order to match it against the
GAG, in accordance with Education and Skills Funding Agency guidance.

Details of restricted and unrestricted funds are shown in the notes to the financial statements.

Critica! accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Crit ico I o cco u nti ng esti m o tes, oss u m ptio ns o n d j ud g e m e nts
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and

assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

. The presentvalueof the Local Government Pension Schemedefined benefit liability dependson a numberof factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in the
notes, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects
results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a
full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

. The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful economic lives of property. The useful economic
lives of property, plant and equipment were initially based on trustees judgement and experience. The useful
economic lives are assessed annually and changed when necessary to reflect current thinking on their remaining lives.
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ESFA - Capital Grant
Other capital donations
LRGS charity donations
Other donations

Less: ESFA Grants allocated to boarding

2020 total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset

Funds Funds Funds
fff

- 30,201
- 45,000

- 63,OL7 47,740

67,832 122,947
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Total Total
202L 2020

f Restqted C

30,207 22t,996
45,000

710,757 95,102
4,815 37,872

190,773 338,910

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

2. General Annual Grant (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the academy trust was subject to limits at 31 August 2021on the
amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An amount equal to 72o/o of GAG could be carried
forward, of which upto 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes, with any balance being available for
premises/capital purposes.

The academy trust has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2021.

3. Donations and Capital Grants

67,832 122,947 790,773

t78,O75

(150,89s)
L78,O75

Total
2020

Restqted f
5,004,732

s2,06s
76,085

227,096
27,634

485,363

5,866,375

38,377

75,L50 35,979 66,886

4. Funding for Academy's educational operations

DfE/ESFA Grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants

Pupil premium
Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant

Other ESFA grants

Other DfE Group grants
Maths Hub

British Council

Other Government Grants
LA funded statements
Other government grants

Exceptbnal government funding
COVID-19 additional funding (ESFA/DfE)

Catchup premium
Coronavirus exceptional support

COVID-19 additional funding (non - ESFA/DfE)

Mass testing fund
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant

Less: Job retention scheme grants allocated to boarding

Catering
School trips and activities income
Maths hub other income
Other educational income

2020 total

39,066 39,066

67,840 67,U0
6,2L8 6,278

M,560 44,560
31,888 31,888

150,506 150,506
(31,888) (31,888)

118,618 118,618

Unrestricted
Funds

f

Restricted
Funds

f
5,738,25L

49,090

81,390
236,543

33,600

615,588

68,945

Total
2021

f
5,738,zst

49,080

81,390
236,543

33,600

61s,588
68,94s

5,823,397 6,923,397

39,066 39,066

162,929

77,617

(4s,4231

9,600
76,257

L62,929
(4s,423)

9,600
93,862

38,377

108,431

to8,437

108,431

201,677
222,467

27,557

87,966

240,540 6,961,509 7,202,049

425,637 6,727,273 6,552,844

6,552,8M



Notes to the Financia! Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

3. Donations and Capital Grants (Continued)

Exceptional government funding
The ocodemy trust hos been eligible to cloim odditionol funding in yeor from government support schemes in response to
the coronovirus outbreok. The funding received is shown obove under "exceptionol government funding".

The academy furloughed some of its boarding staff under the government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The

funding received relates to staff costs in respect of 34 staff which are included within the wages note.

The academy received f67,840 in respect of the catch up premium. This has been spent on hardware resources to
support remote learning, additional revision materials and online resources and additional staffing to enable teaching

staff to provide catch up sessions to pupils.

The academy received 844,560 in respect of mass testing. This has been used to fund the cost of staffing to perform
mass testing and the cost of additional associated cleaning materials.

The academy received f6,278 in respect of coronavirus exceptional support to cover the additional cleaning costs

incurred in keeping the academy open to key workers' children in the Summer Term 2020.

Lancaster Royal Grammar School

5. Other Trading Activities

Hire of facilities - lettings
Hire of pitches
Catering
lnsurance claims - trips and activities
Risk protection arrangement claims

Other trading activities

2020 total

5. lnvestment lncome

Bank interest receivable
Other interest receivable

2020 total

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds
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Total Total
2021 2020

E Restoted E

925 32,482

2,459 5,156
M,939 60,840

3,087

E

925

2,459

f

u,gzg
3,087

3,384 48,026 51,410 98,478

37,638 50,840 98,478

Unrestricted
Funds

E

Restricted
Funds

f

Tota! Total
2021 2020

E Restoted E
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Non Pay Expenditure
Premises Other Costs

f.e
93 2,459
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Total
2020

Restqted f.
5,156

5,922,347
t,975,730
7,799,077

7,47O,607

7. Expenditure

Cost of other trading activities

Academy's ed ucationa I operations
Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Provision of boarding activities
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

5,455,485 7,058,967

939,978 585,753

%rglru 5s5r?53

4,783,535
681,950

317,472
747,495

944,563
420,006

r,364,569

458,071
458,07L

Total
202L

f
2,552

6,039,570
1,849,45t
7,889,O2L

1,983,802

Staff
Costs

f.

1,983,802 t,470,607

6,405,463 L,644,973 1,825,099 9,875,375 9,273,940

5,805,659 1,331,630 2,L36,55t2020 total

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:
Depreciation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets

Operating leases

Fees payable to current auditor

8. Cost of Other Trading activities

Other lettings
Heat and light
Catering

Catering to staff
Catering

2020 total

- audit of the financial statements
- other assurance services

- other services

Unrestricted
Funds

f

9,273,940

2021
f

364,L63

31,858

7,75O

2,000

3,750

Restricted Total
Funds 2O2L

ff

-93

2020
Restoted f

388,564

&393
11,000

1,500

3,s00

Total
2020

Restoted E

:,
93

2,459
2,459

93

2,459 5,156

2,459 5,155

2,5s2 2,552 5,156

5,155 5,156
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9. CharitableActivities

Direct Costs - educational operations
Teaching and educational support staff costs

Depreciation
Loss / (Profit) on disposal
Educational supplies
Staff development
Examination fees
Technology costs

Maths Hub costs
Erasmus project expenditure
School trips and activities costs
Other direct costs

Support Costs - educational operations
Support staff costs

Other staff costs

Depreciation
Loss on disposal offixed assets

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Maintenance of premises and equipment - CIF

Cleaning
Rates and water
Hire costs
Heat and light
lnsurance
Telephone
Transport
Administrative suppl ies

Catering expenses
Legal and professional fees
Foreign currency exchange (gains) and losses

CIF loan interest payable

Other support costs

Support Costs - governance
Audit fees

Accountancy and assurance fees

Less: Recharge to boarding
Trustees' training and expenses
Legal fees
Professional fees
Net finance costs in respect of defined benefit

pension schemes

Total direct and support costs

2020 total

- 681,950
- 6,790
- 101,891

- 275,576-- 
,ou,r)r.

- 70,594
- 15,455
- 736,702
- 77,160
- 9,0s0
- 8,31s
- 38,904

762,929 23,745
- 52,757
- t3,22s

Unrestricted
Funds

f
54,363

16,806
77,L69

Restricted
Funds

E

4,729,t72
262,272

49,200
107,509

Lt,25t
98,263
41,501

547,274

59,937
62,O22

Total
202r

f
4,783,535

262,272
49,200

107,509
77,251
98,253

41,501

547,274

59,937
78,828

Tota!
2020

Restoted f
4,245,870

263,472

772,O77

L2,267
13s,831

33,s34
604,997

34,250
233,665
746,384

5,822,3475,968,401 6,039,570

681,9s0
6,790

101,991

275,576

206,t72
70,594
15,455

136,t02
L7,160
9,050
8,31s

38,904
L86,074
52,757

L3,225

9,7367,O27

804,109
8,362

125,092

227,346

162,M7
65,777
16,083

142,563
20,782

8,618

3,058

38,233
248,768

45,899
(1o,773)

L5,7092,709
165,638 1,604,773 7,769,75t 7,9t4,867

6,863

54,000 il,000
79,700 79,700

54,000

60,853

236,807 7,652,274 7,889,027 7,798,077

407,775 7,396,362 7,798,077

18,750

11,250
(14,300)

18,750

77,250
(14,300)
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2020
Restoted f
4,200,532

422,092
L,t47,968

6,839
5,777,437

28,228

5,805,559

Seconded Staff
The academy employs staff that work for the LRGS Charity. This has been separated disclosed in the accounts for the
academic year 2O2Ol2!.

b. Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

lncluded in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling fNil (2020: fNil).
lndividually, the payments were fNil. (2020: fNil)

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows:
2021

No
6

75

74

155 757

10. Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes
Apprenticeship levy

Supply staff costs
Staff restructuring costs
Staff seconded in / out ofthe organisation

Staff restructuri ng costs comprise:
Redundancy payments

Severance payments
Other restructuring costs

Choritoble Activities
Management
Teachers

Administration and support

202L
f

4,752,984
465,593

1,277,694
8,724

6,498,995
99

(93,631)

6/Os/63

2020
No
6

73

78
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d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded f 60,Ofi) was:

2021
No
3

1

1

Page 43

2020
No
3

1

f60,000 to f69,999
f70,000 to f79,999
f100,000 to f109,999

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as listed on
paBe 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the academy trust was:

2021

f
2020

f
Senior Management Team

Staff Governors
650,442 677,595
t77,670 776,02L
828,052 793,7L6
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11. Transfers Between Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Speech and Drama fund contribution to GAG

GAG contribution towards capital projects

Boarding activities
Boarding contribution towards CIF 2020121Ashton House Project

Page 44

202L
€

3,528

Boarding contribution towards fixed assets in past years - reimburse unrestricted (35,194)
(L2s,364)

(121,836)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets used for charitable purposes

Purchases from ESFA formula grant
Purchases from capital donations

ESFA formula grant to Fixed assets fund
Purchases of fixed assets used for charitable purposes
Formula Capital contribution to CIF projects

Condition improvement grant funds
Boarding contribution towards CIF 2020l2L Ashton House Project

22,477

22,477

(22,4!71

(22,417)

90,770

GAG contribution towards capital projects

90,t7o

205

90,375

Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted genera I funds
Speech and Drama fund contribution to GAG (3,733)

Boarding contribution towards fixed assets in past years - reimburse unrestricted 35,194

3L,467

3L,461

3,733
(20s)

(90,170)
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t2. Related Party Transactions - Governors'remuneration and expenses
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One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the academy

trust. The principal and other staff governors only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the

roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

Other Trustees did not receive any paymentt other than expenses, from the academy in respect oftheir role as trustees.

The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits for the period was as follows:

Dr C Pyle (Headteacher and Trustee)
Remuneration f105,000 to t109,999 (2020: f100,000 to f104,999)
Employer's pension contributions f25,000 to f 29,999 (2020: f 20,000 to f 24,999)

Mrs M Sinclair (Staff Trustee) - Left March 2020
Remuneration N/A (2020: f5,000 to f9,999)
Employer's pension contributions N/A (2020: f0 to f4,999)

Mr R Mellon (Staff Trustee)
Remuneration f50,000 to f54,999 (2020: f50,000 to f54,999)
Employer's pension contributions f 10,000 to f 14,999 (2020: f 10,000 to f 14,999)

Mr H Castle
Remuneration 845,000 to f49,999 (2020: f45,000 to f49,999)
Employer's pension contributions f 10,000 to f14,999 (2020: f 10,000 to f 14,999)

Mr G Thompson
Remuneration f30,000 to f 34,999 (2020: f20,000 to f24,999)
Employer's pension contributions f5,000 to f9,999 (2020: f0 to f4,999)

During the year ended 3l August 2021, travel and subsistence expenses totalling f Nil were reimbursed to no governors in

respect of their teaching role (2020: fNil to no governors).

13. Governors and officers insurance

ln accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect governors and officers
from claims for negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance forthe year ended

31 August 2021 provides cover up to f 10,000,000 (2020: f 10,000,000) on any one loss and any one membership year.

The academy's insurance is via the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) and the cost of this
insurance is included in the total insurance cost. lt is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element
from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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Plant &
Machinery
Restoted f

8,265
5,500

lcT
Equipment
Restoted f.

62,750
5,044

Furniture
Fittings &

Equipment
Restoted f

453,871
77,87_3

Motor
Vehicles

Restoted f.

40,944
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Total

Restoted f
36,779,453

22,417
(50,000)

36,681,870

2,7L7,t05
364,163
(10,800)

14. Tangible Fixed Assets Long
Leasehold Land

& Buildings
Cost Restoted E

As at l September 2020 36,753,623
Additions
Disposals
As at 31 August 2021

Depreciation
As at 1 September 2020
Charge in year

Disposals
As at 31 August 2021

Net book values
As at 31 August 2021

As at 1 September 2020

too,oool
36,093,623

2,275,792
262,272
(10,800)

2,527,264

33,566,359

73,765

7,575
2,523

67,794

59,556
3,311

465,744

342,478
89,506

40,944

3L,704
6,551

10,098 62,867 437,994

33,7603,667 4,927

38,255 3,070,468

2,689 t3,6ttA02

33,877,831 3,L94 111,393 9,24O 34,O02,348

lncluded within land and buildings net book values are the following classes of assets:

1 Land

22,980,000 HistoricBuildings
10,586,358 OtherLeaseholdBuildings
33,566,359

Historic Buildings
The school site is made up of some of the most historic buildings including; Old School, housing the school Library, Sixth
Form Centre, Drama Studios and teaching rooms. Old School House is a Grade ll listed building, formerly the Headmasters
house, now used as the Development Office with formal rooms for holding meetings and events. New Building dates back
to 1929 and includes the Assembly Hall and teaching rooms.

The historic buildings are considered to have an indefinite useful life and are not depreciated.

Valuation Details
The historic buildings and the other leasehold buildings were included on conversion to an academy based on an insurance
valuation by Ecclesiastical lnsurance Company. The valuation is based on the estimated 'rebuild costs', which the governors
have amended downwards to get to the Existing Use Value using a depreciated replacement cost approach. Under this
approach the historic buildingswere valued atf22,980,000 and other leasehold buildings atf12,577,0O0.

f1 has been assigned to the land on which the properties are situated by the governors. This valuation reflects the fact that
the land is tied specifically to educational use. No account has been taken of any potential development value.

ESFA Condition lmprovement Funds

During the year the academy incurred significant expenditure on the Ashton House Heating & Distribution refurbishment
project which was funded by an ESFA Condition lmprovement Fund grant. The full cost of this project has been treated as

resources expended in the Statement of Financial Activities and is included in the boarding note under maintenance of
premises and equipment - ClF.

Adjustment in2O2Ol2t
The governors were made aware that the valuation of the historic buildings and the other leasehold buildings at conversion
did not conform to the depreciated replacement cost approach. ln addition there were capital projects additions of a

refurbishment nature to the historic buildings, these were originally held at'rebuild costs'and not depreciated so project
additions was overstating the value in the balance sheet of these assets. Due to this all refurbishment projects were
removed from fixed assets and treated as revenue. This was done by restating the comparative balances.

690
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15. Stock

Ed ucational stationery
Clothing

16. Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other debtors

Debtors: Amounts falling due treater than one year
lncluded within other debtors is an amount owed from LGRS Charity. The academy is not

sure if they will receive settlement of the debtor within one year. The balance is disclosed

in further detail in the Related Party Transactions note.

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Taxation and social security
ESFA creditor - bursary
Other creditors including agency funds
Accruals

Deferred income
ESFA loans

Salix loans
CIF loans

Deferred lncome

Deferred income includes:

Deferred income at l September 2020
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

Deferred i ncome comprises:

ESFA grant for rates 1 September 2027to3tMarch2022
Student placement money
Other

PaEe 47

202L
f

70,372
475

70,u7 8,279

2020
Restoted f.

8,279

202L
f

93,442
27,327

85,470
722,087

272,463
600,789

266,743

2020
Restoted E

448,065
102,316

3,20s
748,820
L32,949

16,504

5,490

1,767,443

202L
E

t6,504
23,294

(15,504)

23,294

16,504

6,220
570

23,294 16,504

2020
Restoted f

186,8s8
18,633

57,724
251,055

276,845
725,L25

2021
f

455,474
t!2,295

10,361

783,581

255,848
23,294

120,000

6,490

1,459,349

2020
Restated f

16,504

16,504
(16,s04)

16,504

16,504
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18. Creditors: Amounts falling due greater than one year 2O2L 2OZO

e aestotea i.
ESFA loans
Salix loans

CIF loans

Salix loans

CIF loans

An interest free loan of f599,000 has been provided by the Education & Skills Funding Agency. The terms of repayment of
this loan are per an agreed repayment schedule with the final instalment in August 2025. The annual payments vary
between f100,000 and f145,000 per annum.

Salix loans are public benefit concessionary loans which are repayable over 8 years from commencement and are interest
free.

The academy as part of the2O20l21 condition improvement fund project received funding in the form of a CIF loan. This
loan is repayable over 5 years and attracts an interest rate of 2.07%, the first repayment via an abatement of GAG funding
will be in September 2022.

lncluded within the above are amounts not wholly repayable within 5 years and are repayable by instalments totalling:

479,OOO s64,000
72,715 79,205
40,770 40,770

591,885 693,375

f Restoted f
25,000 37,250
8,479 16,735
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19. Funds Balance at
01-Sep

2020
Restoted f.

(2,080,9s4)

772,322
(34,250)

845,252
208,300

(5,682,333)
(49,080)
(81,390)

(235,s43)
(33,600)

(556,375)
(23,837)
(3s,065)
(67,840)
(44,s60)

(6,218)

(31,888)
(1,5s6,44s)

(60,187)
(16,2s0)
(67,832)

(8,653,444)

(413,363)
(7,7841

(230,489)
(9s,935)

1747,572)

(23s,000)
(9,636,016)

(16s,388)

173,977)
(r39^359)

Gains, Losses

and Transfers

f

3,528

(26s)

(12s,364)

265
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Balance at
3l-Aug

202L
f

(2,O27,sO8],

244,223
10,593

838,114
147,894

lncoming Resources
resources expended

CC
Restricted General Funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium
Teachers pay grant

Teachers pension grant
Other ESFA grants
Maths Hub

British Council - Erasmus
LA funded statements
Catch-up premium

Mass testing fund
Coronavirus exceptional support
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Boarding activities
School Trips and Activities
Other educational income
Other restricted general funds

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds

ESFA condition improvement funds 20/21
Other capital donations

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds

Pension reserve fund
Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds

Catering fund
Other designated funds
General funds
Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

5,738,251
49,080

81,390

236,543
33,600

628,276
68,945

39,066

67,U0
44,550

6,278
31,888

L,774,671
(484)

16,250

67,832
(889,330) 8,883,926

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes 34,002,348
ESFA formula capital

150,89s
(20s)

34,163,038

(3,421,000)

29,852,7W

30,201

92,740
722,94t

-

9,006,g67

165,388

(121,836)

22,477
(22,4!71

90,770
20s

90,375

51,000

29,539

(780,684)

33,6LL,402

20,576
(3,195)

33,628,782

(3,595,000)
29,253,U)8

(gs,rg+) za,s3s
(35,194) 243,924

31,467
3L,461

832

29,8L7,514 9,2$,791 (9,875,3751 61,(X)0 29,253,930

Details of transfers are shown in Note 11.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was subject to a limit on the amount of GAG

that it could carry fonarard at 3l August 2021. Note 2 discloses whether the limit was exceeded.

The trust is carrying a net deficit of f779,852 (2020 Restated: f924,524, previously f7,237,9961on restricted general funds

(excluding pension reserve) plus unrestricted funds. The academy trust is taking the following action to return these funds to

surplus as described in the funds in deficit section below.
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The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) fund
This represents the core funding for the educational activities of the school that has been provided to the academy via the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Pupil premium fund
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support disadvantaged students in their teaching and learning, with the aim of
improving their attainment and closing the gap with more advantaged students.

Teachers pay and pension grants
Teachers pay grant is provided to support teacher pay awards. Teachers pension grant is provided to support the increase in

employer contributions to the Teachers' Pension Scheme from September 2019.

Catch-up premium
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support pupils and disadvantaged young people catch up on missed education
because of coronavirus (COVID-19)

Maths Hub
The academy is the Lead school for the North North-West Maths Hub. The purpose of the funding is to support schools and

colleges to achieve excellence in mathematics education from primary to post-16. As the Lead school, the academy is
responsible for the overall activity of the Hub and the financial management of the Hub's budget.

Defined benefit pension scheme fund
This represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at the year end.

local authority funded statements
This represents funding from the Local Authority to pay for Learning Support Assistants who support the
"statemented" special needs students.

Other restricted general funds
This includes voluntary income and educational income to be expended on specific projects, activities and materials for the
benefit of the pupils.

ESFA condition improvement funds
This represents monies from the ESFA in relation to capital projects.

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes

This represents the value and movements on Tangible Fixed Assets note.

Funds in Deficit
The General Annual Grant fund was in deficit at the year-end totalling f2,027,508 (2020 Restated: f 2,080,954, previously
f2,273,1761. The funding fell short of the schools needs and expectations in this and previous years. The academy trust is

taking action to return these funds to surplus with the addition of an extra form in year seven and as we welcome girls into
our 6th form which became co-educational for the first time in September 2019. ln addition to the above action the academy
trust has also reviewed its staffing costs to find additional savings to return the funds to surplus following the impact of the
loss of boarding income caused by the forced closure of the school in 2079120 and 2020127.

The pension reserve fund represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at the year end. The

academy has previously entered into an agreement effective from 01 April 2014 to make additional contributions in addition
to normal funding levels and it is anticipated that the payments will be made over 19 years. For details of the deficit payment
plan see the pensions note.
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Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted General Funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium
Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant
Other ESFA grants

Maths Hub

British Council - Erasmus

LA funded statements
Catch-up premium
Mass testing fund
Coronavirus exceptional su pport
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Boarding activities
School Trips and Activities
Other educational income
Other restricted general funds

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
Fixed assets used for charitable purposes
ESFA formula capital
ESFA condition improvement funds 20/21
Other capital donations

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds
Pension reserve fund
Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds

Catering fund
Other designated funds
General funds
Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

AS REPORTED tN20L9l20

Fixed Assets adjustments
Maths Hub recognised as principal

School Trips and Activities
British Council - Erasmus

Catering for pupils

Catering for staff
Bursary removed to agent fund from GAG

Boarding wages allocated to GAG in error
Boarding wages allocated to GAG in error
CIF Loan on project removed from income

Salix Loan on project removed from income
Salix Loan 17/l8not on balance sheet

Balance at
01-Sep

20t9
Restoted f

(1,587,185)

291,956

1,075,000

158,664

(160,s6s)

34,244,827
- 61,101
- 160,89s

21,000 5,785

34,265,827 227,781

(3,118,000)

30,987,256 7,il2,9n

(311)

(311)

lncoming Resources Gains, Losses

resources expended and Transfers

Restoted f Restoted f Restoted f

5,004,132 (5,457,650) 59,749
52,065 (52,065)

76,08s (76,085)
227,096 (221,096l,

27,634 (27,6341

48s,363 (604,997)
- (34,2s0)

38,377 (38,3771

1,79t,L77 .r,470,607l,
283,301 (233,65s)

48,682

35,979 (3s,979)
(8,2s2,40s)

(388,s64)

7,4t5,209
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Balance at
31-Aug

2020
Restoted f

(2,080,9s4)

772,322
(34,2s0)

8r'.5,252

208,300

108,431 (889,330)

146,091 34,002,348
(61,101)

(26,990)
150,89s

(20s)

34,163,03858,000

177,000l. (3,421,000)

89,431 29,852,7@

(108,431)
(58,000) (35,194)

(166,431) (35,194)

(388,s64)

(226,000)
(8,866,969)

205,833 (206,833)

108,431

223,755 (200,038)

538,419 (406,871)

30,986,945 8,181,4q' 19,271840) (77,000) 29,817,514

36,783,689

{16,20s,!79)
291,956
158,664

r+z,tss)
30,986,945

7,309,373

485,363

283,301

201,677

5,156
(13,291)

(40,L7O1

(50,000)

(8,196,199)

(t4,4721
(504,997)
(233,66s)

(34,2s0)
(201,677)

(s,1s6)
10,086

237,062
(231,062)

6,490

19,273,8401

l77,m,Ol 35,819,863

(6,219,651)
772,322
208,300
(34,2s0)

rs,zost
23r,062

(237,062l.
(4O,L7O',)

(50,000)
(3s,59s)

29,8L7,5L4
(6,(x)2,349)

8,181,4U' (
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Net book value as previously reported at 31 August 2020
Refurbishment capital projects - historic buildings
Refurbishment capital projects - other leasehold buildings
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Restated Comparative Balances

The comparative figures for the year ended 31 August 2020 have been adjusted for a number of reasons. The outcome of the
adjustments is that the total funds reported at the end of 31 August have decreased by f6,002,349 from f35,819,963 to
f29,8L7,s74.

The note at the bottom of the funds for the preceding period highlight all the individual changes. The income and
expenditure notes have been updated for all these items. The material changes fall into three categories:

F ixed Ass et Adj u st m e nts
The governors were made aware that the valuation of the historic buildings and the other leasehold buildings at
conversion did not conform to the depreciated replacement cost approach. ln addition there were capital projects
additions of a refurbishment nature to the historic buildings, these were originally held at 'rebuild costs' and not
depreciated so project additions was overstating the value in the balance sheet ofthese assets. Due to this all
refurbishment projects were removed from fixed assets and treated as revenue. This was done by restating the
comparative balances.

Reduction in leasehold buildings when depreciated replacement cost recalculated (2,973,7301
Land included

Restated Net book value at 31 August 2020 u,oo2,34g

Principol forfunds not agent
The following income streams where updated to reflect that the academy acts as the principal for the funds and not just
the agent. The academy has control over the funds and has the associated risks so the arrangement is now being be
accounted for through the SOFA.

. Maths Hub NNW

. School Trips and Activities
o Catering for Pupils and Staff
. LRGS's share of the British Council grant under their direct supervision.

Copitol project loons
There have been several CIF or Salix Loans attached to ESFA Condition lmprovement Projects over the last few years.

These were initially recorded as income from the ESFA and not shown on the balance sheet and any repayments were
posted to the SOFA and not to the balance sheet to reduce the loan balance. This has been restated to show the
liabilities on the balance sheet from the date the loans were drawn on the capital projects and any repayments reducing
the liability.

Restated General Annual Grant (GAG) balance
The GAG balance has altered from a deficit of 82,273,7L6 to a deficit of f2,222,O84 at 31 August 2O2O.For clarity in howthis
has been adjusted please refer to the following:

40,227,999
(3,794,797)

(st,7251

(2,273,7761

(51,920)
76,225

231,062
(3,205)

(2,080,954)

GAG deficit as reported in the previous years accounts
2Ol7l78 Salix Loan - academy contribution from GAG funds

Less: Salix loan repayments removed from SOFA

Reallocate mis posting of wages in accounts to boarding
Bursary income posted via the SOFA and not agency funds

Restated GAG deficit as at 31 August 2020
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20. Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds

Fund balances at 3 1 Augusl 2027 are represented by: Restricted Restricted
General Fixed Asset

Funds Funds

Ef.
- 33,677,402

t,444,646 151,378
(1,633,44s) (133,998)

(591,885)
(3,s9s,000) _
(4,375,684) 33,628,782

Page 53

Tota!
Funds

f
33,6rr,402

1,596,856
('L,767,4431

(591,885)
(3,595,000)

29,253,93O

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current I iabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total Net Assets

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current I iabilities
Pension scheme liability
Tota! Net Assets

2L. CommiUnents under operating leases

Assets other than land & buildings
Amounts due within one year

Amounts due between one and five years

Amounts due after five years

Unrestricted
Funds

f

832

Unrestricted
Funds

Restoted E

(ES,rgat

Restricted
General

Funds
Restated f.

L,217,20O
(1,423,1ss)

(683,375)
(3,421,000)
(4,310,330)

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds
Restoted f

34,002,348
160,690

-

:14,163,038

Total
Funds

Restoted E

34,002,348
7,377,890

(1,4s8,349)
(683,37s)

(3,421,000)

29,817,514(35,194)

Operating Leases

At the balance sheet date the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases was:
2021

f
29,228
39,780

2020
f.

8,392
5,763

88,568 14,L55

Land and property Ieases

The leasehold land and buildings are subject to lease with the Lancaster Royal Grammar School Charity. The lease term is 125

years from and including 15 April 2011. The main school site is subject to a peppercorn rent which may be demanded but no

such rent has been demanded to date.

Under the terms of the lease there is a boarding rent payable.
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22. Capital Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements
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2021 2020
ff

20,576

The capital commitment related to lhe 2020121 Condition lmprovement Fund project . The Ashton House Heating &
Distribution refurbishment project was nearly completed at 3l August 2027but there is still a balance as reported in the
funds note to be spent.

23. Members'tiability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding f 10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.



Lancaster Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

24. Pension and Similar Obligations

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery
LGPS current service cost/contributions adjustment
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The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and

Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which

is managed by Your Pension Service for Lancashire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial

valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions payable to the schemes at 31 August and included in creditors were as follows:
202L 2020

ff
87,74t 83,583
34,150 3L,404

l21-,89l Lr4,987

The total pension costs to the academy during the year ended 31 August and included in staff costs were as follows:

202L
f

765,872
252,930

87,892
171,000

2020
f.

617,086
283,591

75,297
772,000

7,27L,694 7,147,968

Teachers' Pension Scheme

lntroduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'

Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-
out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary -

these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers'Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4

years. The aim of the review is to specifo the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on

assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the
TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March

2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the

effective date of f 218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional

investments held at the valuation date) of f 196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of E22,000 million

. The SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is2.4%

above the rate of CPl. assumed real rate of return is2.4% in excess of prices and2% in excess of earnings. The rate of

real earnings growth is assumed tobe2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is4.45o/o
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

24. Pensions and Similar Obligations (continued)

The nen valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to f765,872 (2020: f677,0861.

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the information
available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separatetrustee-administered funds. The
total contributions made for the year ended 31 August were as follows:

Employer's contributions
Em ployees' contributions
Total contributions

202r
f

334,822
76,513

2020
f

358,882
70,000

411,335 42g,gg2

The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.3% for employers , and 5.5% to 72.5% for employees depending on
pay bands.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an
academytrust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

At the balance sheet date the scheme is in deficit. The Academy has entered into an agreement effective from 1 April 2020
to make additional contributions in addition to normal funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over
13 years from I April 2020, including f80,600 for 2O20/2L, f83,700 in 202t122 and f87,000 in 2022123.
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24. Pensions and Similar Obligataons (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

The principa! actuarial assumptions are:

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
lnflation assumption (CPl)

Page 57

At 31 August At 31 August
2021 2020

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed

life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
At 31 Autust At 31 August

202t 2020

Retiring todoy
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 yeors
Males
Females

Sensitivity analysis
The table below, as produced by Mercer sets out the impact of a small change in assumptions on the defined benefit

obligation.

4.20%
2.80%
7.70%
2.70%

22.4

25.7

23.9

26.9

Deficit

3,294,000
3,ss0,000
3,637,000
3,211,000
3,551,000
3,293,000
3,436,000

3.90%
2.50%
L.80%
2.40%

22.3
25.0

23.8

26.8

Discount rate + 0.7%o

Discount rate- 0.7%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase

Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease

CPI rate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

Pay growth + 0.1%

Deficit

3,449,000
3,7M,00O
3,g6g,ooo
3,331,000
3,743,000
3,450,000
3,610,000

At 31 August
202L

Change

(146,000)

149,000
273,000

(264,000)

148,000
(14s,000)

15,000

At 31 August
2020

Change

(127,000)

129,000
215,000

(210,000)

130,000
(128,000)

15,000
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24. Pensions and Similar Obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were: Fair value
at 31 August

202L
f.

2,428,000

255,000
491,000
101,000

1,543,000
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Fair value
at 31 August

2020
f

1,799,000

277,000
s34,000

71,000
1,259,000

Equity instruments
Equities

Debt instruments
Government bonds
Other bonds

Property
Cash/liqu idity
Other

Total Market Value of Assets

Present value of scheme liabilities
Funded

Unfunded
Surplus / (deficit) in the scheme

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was f570,000 (2020: f34,000).

4,808,000

(8,403,000)

3,923,000

(7,3M,OOO\

(3,sss,000) (3,421,000)

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any of the academy's own financial instruments or any property
occupied by, or other assets used by, the academy.

Amounts recognised in the statement of financialactivities

Current service cost (net of employee contributions)
Net interest cost
Administration expenses

Past service (cost)/gain

Gain/(loss) on curtailment
Total operating charge

Other recognised gains and (losses)

Remeasurements (liabi lities)
Remeasurements (assets)

Total amount recognised in the SOFA

(570,000)

(77,0OOl

202L
f

2020
f

(s05,000) (447,000l,
(s7,000) (s4,000)
(7,000) (7,000)

2021
f

(43s,000)

496,000

61^OO0

(508,000)

2020
f

275,000
(352,000)
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24. Pensions and Similar Obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

Changes in the deficit in the year:

Deficit in scheme at 1 September 2020
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Em ployer contri butions
Past service (cost)/gain
Actuarial (gain)/loss - Remeasurements
Administration expenses

lnterest income
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements

Deficit at 31 August 2021

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 01 September 2020
Current service cost
lnterest cost

Em ployee contributions
Past service (cost)/gain
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Remeasurements
Benefits / transfers paid

Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Benefit obligation at 31 August 2021

Changes in the fair value of Academy's share of scheme assets:

At 01 September 2020
lnterest income
Administration expenses
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Remeasurements
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits / transfers paid

Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Scheme assets at 31 August 2021
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2021
e

3,42r,OO0
s06,000
131,000

(33s,000)

(61,000)
7,000

(74,000)

2020
t

3,118,000
447,OOO

127,000
(282,000)

77,000
7,000

(73,000)

3,595,000

202L
f

(7,344,000)
(s06,000)
(131,000)

(79,000)

(435,000)

92,000

3,421,000

2020
f

(7,047,000)
(/147,000)
(127,000)

(70,000)

275,000
72,OOO

(8,403,000)

2021
f

3,923,000
74,000
(7,000)

496,000
335,000

79,000
(92,000)

(7,344,000)

2020
f

3,929,000
73,000
(7,000)

(3s2,000)
282,O00

70,000
(72,000)

4,909,000 3,923,000

* Past service cost includes: McCloud impact
GMP indexation
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

25. Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local public and
private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trustees have an interest. All

transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH, including
notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with
the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
tra nsactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the period of account:

The LGRS Charity is a connected charity whose objective is to assist the trustees of LRGS in promoting the education of
pupils.

The Friends of LRGS Charity is a connected charity. The Friends of LRGS are a group of parents who support the school in

many ways: the School Shop, fundraising, social activities, and help at school events. The Friends of LRGS was set up in 1973

and provide and assist in the provision of facilities for education in the School.

lncome Related Partv Transactions
During the year, the Academy has had transactions with the LRGS Charity and the Friends of LRGS Charity. These amounts
principally relate to donations received of 8170,757 12020:85,tO2) and f 4,815 12020: 14,992) respectively.

Expenditure Related Partv Tra nsactions
During the year there was also rent paid of f 175,000 (2020: f775,000) to the LRGS Charity in relation to the boarding
provision.

During the year the academy paid the payroll costs for members of staff working for the LRGS Charity. At the year end
these costs had not been settled and are included with in the debtor balance. At the year end, the balance owing to the
charity was a debtor of f266,743 (2020: f 120,681).

The debtor is not expected to be received from LRGS Charity during the year ended 31 August 2022 so has been disclosed
as due over one year in the debtors note.

Related party transactions with staff trustees are detailed in an earlier note.
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26. AgencyArrangements

The academy acts as an intermediary for the following agency arrangements but has no responsibility for them. The

receipts and payments during the period have been excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities. An amount is in

included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable as shown below:
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Monies brought fonrtrard
Receipts during the year
Distributions during the year
Distributions during the year to LRGS

Balance carried forward 10,351

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

16-19 ESFA

Bursary

3,20s
15,783
(8,6271

15-19 ESFA

Bursary

73,297
(10,086)

3,20s

British
Council

782,409
L76,899
(99,230)
(68,945)

191,133

British
Council

14,330

349,977
(181,898)

782,409

Monies brought fontrrard

Receipts during the year
Distributions during the year

Balance carried forward

16-19 Bursary Fund

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA.

British Council
The academy trust distributes grant funding for two Erasmus projects to the Partner Organisations for each project as an

agent for the British Council.

The academy acts as principal for the monies that are distributed from the British Council fund direct to LRGS. The academy

has control over the funds and has the associated risks for the arrangement so accounts for the income and expenditure on

this element through the SOFA.
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27. Boarding Activities Trading Account
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2020

Restoted f Restoted f

7,L83,440
7,737

L,tgt,t77
150,895

160,895

755,679
175,000
262,392

43,110
44,793
57,749
10,105

5,4L2
77,963
43,969

1,726

27,044
1,939

7,346

7,151
75,329

|L,470,607)

(118,535)

Total
f

7,006,r47
(L77,2431

64,980

893,884

20,s76 858,690

lncome
Allocoted to generol boording fund

Fee income
Other income
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant

Allocoted to restricted fixed osset boording fund
Grant income
Gifts in kind (see note 3)

Expenditure
Allocated to generol boording fund

Staff costs
Rent

Catering
Maintenance
Rates

Heat & light
lnsurance

Cleaning
Administrative supplies
Bad debts
Staff development
Commission and publicity costs
Bank charges

Activities
Technology costs
Legal fees

Professional fees
Other

Allocoted to restricted fixed osset boording fund
Maintenance
Maintenance of premises and equipment - CIF

Legal and professional
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Trading Statement Surplus/ (Deficit) on Boarding

Boarding Funds Reconciliation

f

L,774,67L

31,888

939,978
175,000
340,649

64,884
53,684
50,73s
10,961

9,193
24,065
28,794

2,477

10,502
7,954
5,982

345
t7,777
22,999

230,489

1,806,559

(1,7s3,313)

(230,489)
(L77,243)

Restricted
General
Funds

f
845,252

53,246
64,980

963,478

(90,170)
(3s,194)
838,114

Boarding funds surplus/ (deficit) brought forward
Trading statement surplus/ (deficit)
Non cash pension adjustment
Boarding funds before transfers
Assets purchased during the period
Adjustment to contribution to CIF project and fund Salix loan
Adjustment to fund assets from PY as U/R in deficit
Boarding funds carried forward

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

f
160,995

(230,489)

-t^ss4)90,770
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28. Teaching school trading account

Lancaster Grammar School is the Lead School for the NNW Maths Hub, responsible for the overall activity of the Hub

andthefinancial managementoftheHub'sbudget. ThemainadministrationisundertakenbyQueenKatherine's
School, Kendal.

202L
f'000

2020

f'000 f'000 €'(x)0

Restoted Restoted

lncome
Direct income
Other income

Expenditure
Staff costs - administration LRGS

Administration costs
Direct costs

Project expenses
Textbook funding
Leadership and management

Other costs
Audit
Total costs

Transfer between funds

Surplus / (Deficit)

Teaching school balance brought forurard
Teaching school balance carried forward

8,s00
110,863

288,66s
74,252

113,150

20,345
600

628,276

(556,375)

8,s00
95,526

426,682
11,316
74,472
15,518

600

615,588
12,588

485,353
27,557

572,920

(532,ss4)

(11X634i

291,956
172,322

7t,,901

772,322
244,223


